
 

 

Frequently Asked Questions (FAQ) 
 
SAVING BRAINS: SCALING IMPACT 
 
This document addresses frequently asked questions regarding the Saving Brains: Scaling Impact 
Request for Proposals announced October 2013. Additional questions must be submitted to 
savingbrains@grandchallenges.ca. 
 
This document was last updated: November 20, 2013.  
 
Eligibility 
 

 
1. Can institutions in non-eligible countries be collaborators on a project? 
 
A. Yes. It is not the intention of this Request for Proposals to exclude existing productive 

collaborations between applicants in eligible countries and non-eligible countries. If justified, 
these collaborations may be part of a proposal. However, the applicant in the eligible 
country must be the primary applicant and Project Lead of the project, and a majority of the 
budget must be spent in an eligible country listed above (outside of Canada). 
 

2. Can I apply as a Project Lead if I am a citizen of an eligible country?  
 

A. For the primary eligibility criteria, the applicant is the organization / institution. Only 
applicants from the following list of countries listed in Section 4.1 are eligible to apply to this 
Saving Brains Request for Proposals. For the purposes of determining eligibility, Grand 
Challenges Canada may consider both the applicant’s home jurisdiction and any other 
jurisdiction within which grant project activities will take place. The Project Lead must be 
primarily affiliated with the applicant institution. Citizenship is not a factor in determining 
eligibility.  

 
3. Is there any way to connect with potential collaborators in eligible countries? 
 
A. Grand Challenges Canada has established a Global Health Innovation Group on LinkedIn 

for the purpose of connecting potential collaborators. Please see the Members Guide at 
www.linkedin.com/groups/Global-Health-Innovation-3839474?goback=%2Egna_3839474 to 
navigate LinkedIn's features to find other members and collaborate. 
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4. Are Aboriginal communities in Canada eligible as project sites? 
 
A. No. This program is focused on low- and lower-middle-income countries and Canadian 

International Development Agency (CIDA) Countries of Focus. Grand Challenges Canada 
may consider both the applicant’s home jurisdiction and any other jurisdiction within which 
grant project activities will take place.  
 
Any recognized organization in Canada, including Aboriginal organizations, that can 
successfully execute the activities in their respective technical area, and are capable of 
receiving and administering grant funding are encouraged to apply in collaboration with an 
eligible applicant. Canadian applicants must apply with an applicant in an eligible country 
listed in Section 4.1 (outside of Canada) and the majority of the budget must be spent in the 
partner country in order to be eligible. 

 
5. Is it possible to include more junior individuals to conduct the day-to-day work? 

 
A. Yes. Project Leads are encouraged to assemble teams that are best suited to achieve the 

project goals within the time and resources available and that set up a foundation for a 
sustainable solution. Where the majority of the work is being done by team members, it is 
important to clearly describe where the Project Lead's leadership will be focused and how 
this will increase the likelihood of project success. Please see the 'leadership capability to 
champion change' evaluation criterion. 

 
6. Does the program require co-funding? 

 
A. There are no specific co-funding requirements for the Seed grants, however, applicants are 

encouraged to secure co-funding. Transition-to-Scale projects require 50% matching funds 
at the time the grant is signed.  

 
 
7. If the applicant organization is associated with another organization in a non-eligible 

country does this disqualify the applicant organization?  
 

A. In order to be eligible for this competition the applicant organization must be a legally 
registered institution in a country listed in the eligible country list (Appendix A in the Request 
of Proposals). The applicant organization must be able to successfully execute the activities 
in their respective technical area, and have the capacity to receive and administer grant 
funding independent of the organization in the non-eligible country.  Therefore, a link to 
another organization in a non-eligible country would not be grounds for disqualification.  

 
 
8. Can an organization apply for multiple programs funded by Grand Challenges Canada 

with the same Project Lead at the same time?  
 

A. Yes, an organization can apply with the same Project Lead for multiple programs funded by 
Grand Challenges Canada provided that the proposal for each program is responsive to the 
specific call and addresses the program scope and criterion outlined in the Request for 
Proposals.  
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Please note, it is an expectations that each proposal for each submission is novel, if an 
applicant is successful in more than one program and Grand Challenges Canada’s deems 
that the proposals are conducting the same work, funding will only be granted through one 
program and the selection of which program will be up to Grand Challenges Canada. 
Finally, if an organization is selected for funding in multiple programs with the same Project 
Lead, the projects will be carefully assessed for execution risks that may undermine the 
likelihood of success for any or all projects selected for funding.  

 
Project Scope 
 
9. Can the proposed project exceed the time limits? 
 
A. No. Please ensure that the proposed project is feasible within the time limits (i.e., 2 years for 

seed grants and 3 years for transition to scale grants) set in the Request for Proposals. 
Please note that this will be evaluated under the 'technical merit / execution plan' evaluation 
criterion. 

 
10. Will products be considered under this Request for Proposals? 
 
A. Yes. As outlined in “The Goal of This Request for Proposals”, Section 2.1 of the Request for 

Proposals, the goal of this Request for Proposals is to solicit innovative solutions for 
protecting and nurturing early brain development from individuals or teams capable of 
championing systemic change in low-resource settings in eligible low- or middle-income 
countries. Bold, innovative, transformational, outside-the-box solutions are encouraged to 
address the product, practice, policy and implementation gaps for providing equitable, 
evidence based, high-quality environments and experiences conducive for early brain 
development. Please refer to evaluation criteria (Section 4.5) for more details on how each 
proposed idea will be evaluated. 

 
 
Application Process 
 
11. What is the difference between seed and transition-to-scale grants? 

 
A. Seed grants provide up to $250,000 CAD in funding to support the development and 

validation of innovative ideas over a maximum of two (2) years. Proposals are expected to 
demonstrate proof of concept of the idea. Transition-to-scale grants provide up to 
$2,000,000 CAD in funding to support refinement, testing and implementation of innovative 
solutions that have already achieved proof of concept to bring them toward scale over a 
maximum of three (3) years. Each funding stream has separate application forms and 
requirements. Please carefully review the different evaluation criteria for seed and transition-
to-scale grants listed in Section 4.5 of the Request for Proposals.  
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12. Is this the only chance to apply for this program? 
 
A. Saving Brains is a funding priority of Grand Challenges Canada. It is our intention to make a 

similar Request for Proposals on an annual basis in order to build the toolkit of solutions and 
community of innovators focused on this challenge.  

 
13. In what language should the application be completed? 

 
A. Applications in either English or French are accepted. The review process, which is 

conducted by Canadian Institutes of Health Research, is set up to fairly manage applications 
in either language.  

 
14. What evidence or data should be included in the application? 
 
A. The review committee assesses each proposal against the evaluation criteria stated in 

Section 4.5 of the Request for Proposals. Any evidence or data that supports the proposed 
idea with respect to the evaluation criteria should be included. Applicants are encouraged to 
access Grand Challenge Canada’s Online Proposal Development Resource at 
www.grandchallenges.ca/proposaldevelopment, which is updated regularly and contains 
material to help researchers and innovators around the world develop their project 
proposals. 

 
15. Can Grand Challenges Canada recommend mentors to guide potential applicants with 

their application? 
 
A. No, however applicants are encouraged to access Grand Challenge Canada’s Online 

Proposal Development Resource at www.grandchallenges.ca/proposaldevelopment, which 
is updated regularly and contains material to help researchers and innovators around the 
world develop their project proposals and plan for how their innovation will go to scale, be 
sustained and have impact globally. 

 
16. Do the stated character limits include spaces? 
 
A. Yes. The application site fields will not allow you to exceed the character limits. 

 
17. For the project framework table, estimated costs are requested for each activity. Are 

these the same activities that are required to fulfill the objectives? 
 

A. Yes. The main activities required to fulfill each objective should have an estimated cost.  
 
18. In the online application can I use HTML formatting? 
 
A. No. The application site will only allow accepts simple ASCII (simple) text formatting.  
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19. What browsers are supported in the online application?  
 

A. The most up to date version of the following browsers are supported: Internet Explorer, 
Firefox, Chrome and Safari. If your browser cannot be updated or if you are experiencing 
other browser related issues, please try another supported browser and/or contact 
support@grandchallenges.ca.  
 
 
Budget 

 
20. Do indirect costs need to be included within the funding limits? 
 
A. Yes. All costs including indirect costs need to be included within $250,000 CAD for seed 

grants and $2,000,000 CAD for transition to scale grants. Indirect costs cannot exceed 12% 
of direct costs. Please note that 'value for effort' is an evaluation criterion: applications that 
request funds commensurate to the proposed study goals, propose particularly thoughtful 
and efficient use of resources and leverage additional cash (preferred) or in-kind support will 
be viewed favourably.  

 
21. What costs should be captured under the Personnel budget category? 
 
A. Personnel are an individuals employed by the applicant institution/organization. All salaries, 

allowances, honourariums paid to staff directly contributing to the activities of the project are 
included in this category. If the individual is not an employee of the applicant 
institution/organization, the costs should be placed in the Consultants category. For more 
information, please see budget definitions at: www.grandchallenges.ca/resources. 

 
22. What costs should be captured under the Consultant budget category? 
 
A. Consultant is a non-employee of the applicant institution/organization. All expenses related 

to acquiring the services of a consultant for a specific activity within the project can be 
included in this category. The consultant's rate must be specified. Costs may also include 
travel, accommodation, living expenses, and support services hired directly by the 
consultant. If the individual is an employee of the applicant institution/organization, the costs 
should be placed in the Personnel category. For more information, please see budget 
definitions at:  www.grandchallenges.ca/resources. 

 
23. Is the maximum grant size based on the entire project or is it a maximum envelope for 

each year of the project? 
 
A. The maximum grant size is based on the entire grant project. For the seed grant this is up to 

a maximum of $250,000 CAD for the entire grant and for the transition-to-scale grant this is 
up to a maximum of $2,000,000 CAD for the entire grant.  
 
The value of the awards is expected to vary and will be commensurate to the proposed 
project. The level of funding requested should be sufficient to assure completion of the goals 
in the stated timeframe. Grand Challenges Canada reserves the right to fully or 
incrementally fund selected application(s), to partially fund selected applications(s), and to 
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increase or decrease budgets as it deems appropriate at its sole discretion. Indirect costs 
need to be included within the budget. Indirect costs cannot exceed 12% of direct costs. Our 
maximum allowable indirect cost rate of 12% reflects our new policy and was reflected in the 
amended RFP posted on November 20, 2013. 

 
Please note that 'value for effort' is an evaluation criterion: applications that request funds 
commensurate to the proposed study goals, propose particularly thoughtful and efficient use 
of resources and leverage additional cash (preferred) or in-kind support will be viewed 
favourably. 

 
24. Do all costs, including those related to monitoring and evaluating the progress, need 

to be reflected in the project framework table? 
 
A. Yes. All costs need to be reflected in the project framework table. Please distribute costs 

logically to the activity/activities to which it relates. Where appropriate, costs can be 
distributed across activities. 

 
25. Should the amounts for travel to community meetings (required twice a year) be 

included in the budget?  
 

Seed grants will receive additional funds on top their budget for the travel of one team 
member to the community meetings twice a year.  

 
Transition-to-scale applications must include $20,000 per year within their budget to cover 
the costs of two project team members attending two community meetings per year.  

 
 
 
ADDITIONAL QUESTIONS 
 
Any additional questions should be sent to savingbrains@grandchallenges.ca.  
 
For information on all Grand Challenges Canada programs, please find us at  
grandchallenges.ca and on Facebook, Twitter, YouTube and LinkedIn. 
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